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" I cordially greet the Christian Community of Vinzons,
Camarines Norte, as their newly renovated church building
is solemnly re-dedicated.

We Catholics give special importance to our church
edifices, where we come to worship as a group. In every
one of our churches, through the preaching of God’s Word
and the celebration of the Holy Eucharist, we receive the
strength to witness to the Lord and to bring Him and His
saving presence to a world that is badly in need of divine
assurance. :

Your newly renovated parish church is a visible sign of
the “God-with-us”, of the Holy God who brings us close to
Him and to each other. May it be, for the parishioners of the
Parroquia de San Pedro Apostol, a constant reminder of God’s
abiding presence in the community. In that temple, may
they always render reverent homage to the God of love.

Invoking the maternal intercession of the Virgin Mary,
“Mother of the Church”, in the name of the Successor
of Peter, I have the honor to transmit the Apostolic Blessing
that Pope Francis imparts with affection to Bishop Gilbert
Garcera, the Pastor of the Diocese, to the concelebrants, to
the faithful present at the thanksgiving liturgy and to all
who participate in it spiritually.

+ 4‘\,w;q.|u. Fimk,
Archbishop GIUSEPPE PINTO
Apostolic Nuncio to the Philippines

19 February 2015




A Walk Down the %//em@z% cfme

[| Abel C. Icatlo

When the church of Vinzons was razed down by
a fire that occurred a little after midnight of December
25, 2012, the whole province of Camarines Norte
was engulfed, as it were, by a feeling of profound
melancholy. It was because of the huge significance
of the church of Vinzons that it played in the faith-life
of the people for many centuries. Besides, that was.the
first time that the province had seen an almest infernal-
like fire that had eaten up an antique church whose
structure was believed to have been erected in the early
seventeenth century. That incident found its way in the
headlines of the news in the national media. For quite
sometime, it was a leading content of the talks in the

social media.
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men from the towns of Yndan,

Labp, Talisay and Daet to work in

“Malaguet” gold mill in “Paracali”. v
Records also revealed that

Yndan became a prey of moro pirates.
- Bishop Domingo Collantes made - ‘
flﬁenﬁon in his report of his Episcopal Visitation of 1781 about Yndan being a town which was
in a state of constant threat of moro raids. In 1809 and 1810, Libmanan, Talisay and Yndan were
raided by the moros. In 1816, the moros raided again Yndan and sacked the hduses of families in the
town. In 1826, the local governor issued a warning to the towns of Libmanan: Daet, Talisay, Yndan,
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- Paracale, Mambulao and Capalonga regarding the impending attack bygthe moros who were sighted
off the coast of Albay. The following year, 1827, the attack took place in Yndan and it was said that
the natives who were just armed with bows and arrows valiantly defended themselves. But owing to
the superior fire power of the marauding moros, the natives were forced to flee.

An Emerging Urban Center

During the first half,of the nineteénth century, there was an increase in the movement of
commerce in this part of Bicolandia. An 1825 report by Antonio Siguenza showed that “there was a
road” already which proceeds from the town of Daet to the towns of Yndan, Talisay, San Vicente and
Labo.ﬁe mode of transportation was by horse-drawn buggies. The road was the one that served as
_the conduit in transporting goods from Yndan to Daet which was the center of commerce at the time.
~ The main produce of Yndan was rice and vegetables. It was not fully established whether abaga%was
grown abundantly in Yn\(ia{\: But it is believed that there were some places in Yndan where abaca -
was grown for reason§§§‘§d to the importance of abaca as a major industry that fetched high prices

in the international market.
=
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The town pattern of Yndan followed the usual Hispanic urban planning system. The old
1e church was situated opposite the town hall or ayuntamiento. This was actually prescri
laws where the church is juxtaposed with a plaza and a casa tribunal or town hall. T

a marketplace nearby where commerce and trade took place. Around the pueblo cabecera L
ere the clusters of houses of the natives. Attached to the church was a co ento or the

of stone and wood where the parish priest was staying.

ilight of the Spanish regime, the town of Yndan was no

part of La Cooperativa Popular




From Indan to Vinzons

*When the Americans came during the turn of the century, there was no reported resistance
that took place in Indan. The Americans set up their colonial regime in what was known as Partido de
Daet in the province of Ambos Camarines, which included the towns of Talisay, Basud, San Vice;lte
Indan, Labo, Capalonga Paracale, Mambulao, and Daet. The Americans introduced a whole new
socio-political system where the democratic ideology became the dominant ‘guiding prmmples The
Americans also introduced pubhc educational system in the old Indan.._

< However, the American rule was interrupted by four years of J apafnese hegemonic interregnum.

; f During this time, a native of Indan came into the picture by the name of Wenceslao Q. Vinzons. He
was a youthful leader who rose to national prominence because of his extraordinary bnllxance and an
intrepid brand of leadershlp When the Japanese Imperial government made its initial mroads in 1942

_ in this province, Vinzons organlzed a registance movement which launehed some triumphant assaults
against the Japanese forces in Camarines Norte and Camarines Sur. The fame of Vinzons as a fierce
fighting guerilla leader spread far and wide owing to his many victories against the Japanese Imperial
army. Because of this, the Japanese were angered and launched numerous raids to capture Vinzons.
Through the help of a Filipino collaborator, Vinzons was subsequently captured by the Japan§5e. The
circumstances that led to the killing of Vinzons were rather vague. The Japanese just announced in
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1942 that Vinzons attempted to escape and was killed. His remains were never recovered since.
In 1946, Indan was ;enamed Vinzons by the Philippine government to recognize the heroism

and the greatness of the legendary leader of guerilla-armed movement, Wenceslao Q. Vinzons, an

illustrious son of Indan who sent cold shivers down the backbone of a foreign power.

Opver the years, Vinzons as a town has achieved a certain level of socio-economic progress that
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‘ Jne 12-22, 2013: Site Clearing of Debris,
and finding of loose decorative elements

July-November 2013: Structural
alysis and Investigation by
Ruel B. Ramirez and Associates

December 16, 2013: Heritage Contestation
(Public hearing on the Reconstruction of the Church
Presided by Bishop Gilbert Garcera)
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January 23, 2014: Meeting of Parish Priest
and the Parish Pastoral Council Officers
with the Donor, Contractor, Architecht on
the design of Retablo, Pews and Church Doors.




June 4, 2014: Consultation meeting
with Architect Reynaldo Inovero,FUAP
on the treatment of the Coral Stones
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October 2014: Installation of Church Doors - Xb/‘ §
= - May 2015: Construction of St. Peter’s Plaza :
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February 2015: Construction of the Blessed ‘
Sacrament Chapel and Sacristy 3
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As we joyfully re-dedicate the St. Peter, the
Apostle Church to the honor and glory of God
and for the sanctification of his people, it is
fitting that we keep in mind this passage from
Ordo dedicationis ecclesiae et altaris:

“A church is the place where the Christian
community is gath—ered to hear the word of
God, to offer intercession and praise to him, and
above all to celebrate the holy mysteries, and it is
the place where the holy sacrament of the
Eucharist is kept. Thus it stands as a special kind
of image of the Church itself, which is God’s
temple built from living stones!”

We are therefore, filled with gratitude in the
most  scientific and extremely beautiful
restoration of the Parish Church of St. Peter, the
Apostle completed on the 2nd year of
Pontificate of Pope Francis, the 8th year of
episcopacy of the Most Rev. Gilbert A. Garcera,
D.D, the 2nd year of incumbency of Fr. Augusto
Jesus B. Angeles Il as parish priest and with the
assistance from the Parish Pastoral Council
under the leadership of Mrs. Merle C. Fontanilla
and Parish Finance Council headed by Mrs.
Ofelia Ferrer Herrera.

The newly restored church building is an artistic achievement accomplished through the skills of
many craftsmen and the expertise of the following institutions and individuals:

+ CBCP Permanent Committee on Cultural Heritage thru Most Rev. Julito Cortez, D.D. for the
Recommendations for the clearing and eventual re-construction of the church

« Architectural Consultants: Fr. Alex Bautista and Architect Jeremy Balagat, a Conservation Architect

+ Structural Investigation and Analysis: Engr. Ruel B. Ramirez, MSCE M. ASEP, Structural Engineering

Specialist

Treatment of the Coral Stones/ Walls: Arch. Reynaldo A. Inovero, FUAP, Conservation Architect and

Former Chief of the Historic Preservation Division of the National Historical Commission of the

Philippines

+ Historical Research: Abel Cereno Icatlo, Historian and Curator of Provincial Museum

Liturgical Consultants: Rev. Fr. Julito L. Heraldo and Rev. Fr. Rowel Jose P. Abanto

+ Acoustic Design: Engr. Michael Albert Idioma, Sound Engineer

« Light Specialist: Architect Joanna Mauleon

+ Hermes Alegre for the breathtaking wall paintings

+ Diocesan Commission on Church Construction

The construction of the church was also facilitated through the help of the following persons: Gov.
Edgardo Tallado, Robert and Cathy Torres, Benita and Andres Lo, Edson Genilo, Victor and Jessica Varin,
Efren Sale, Arcaida Pascual, Engr. Bob Asis, Engr. Maming Cereno, Menardo Del Barrio.

But even more than that, the restored church is an accomplishment of the Holy Spirit working in the
hearts of people, willing to share their time, ideas and monetary gifts as wonderful stewards of God's
gifts to them. It is because of all your generosity that people of the next generations will have a place
to gather, to worship, to give thanks and to become the People of God.



CHURCH DOORS

Two objects are decorated on the church doors; on the other hand, there are the Hamindang leaves
from which INDAN, the name of the town from 1624 to 1946, was taken;: and on the other hand, the
markers which depicts the major periods in the history of Vinzons as a town and as a parish.
Conceptualized by Fr. Alex Bautista and fabricated by Rolando N. Flores Furniture, the church doors
were given as a gift by Captain Gaudencio Morales and Batch of Vinzons Pilot High School.




CEILING

To give contemplative ambiance to the church, a sacred artwork was placed on the ceiling which was also a

reflection and an expression of human creativity and perception of the sense of the divine. Having obtained

a picture of the ceiling from the archives of University of Sto. Tomas, the ceiling design was an exact copy of

the old ceiling by Arch. Emerson A. Reodique, UAP. Ofelia Ferrer Herrera and children funded the construction
of the ceiling.

CHOIR LOFT

This is a reproduction of the old choir loft. It is constructed through pictures discovered in the archival
documentation. The ceilings of the first floor are decorated with centuries old wood.
Designed by Architect Jeremy Balagat, the choir loft was constructed through the contribution of the
parishioners.
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MACHUCATILES

The floor of St. Peter the Apostle Church of Vinzons was once adorned by machuca tiles. To bring

back the intricate design of machuca tile was a top priority in restoring the church. Machuca Tile Inc.,

originally called Mosaicos Machuca, was the oldest tile manufacturing business in the Philippines,

dating back to late 1900s. Baldozas mosaicos was the proper term describing the Mediterranean
cement tiles, more popular at present as Machuca tiles.

Partly financed by the Vinzonian International, Inc., the pattern was designed by Fr Alex Bautista and

Arch Jeremy Balagat. Many parishioners also contributed through the Alay-Sahig drive of the parish.



CORAL STONE (CHURCH WALLS), RAFTER AND ROOFING

After six months of Structural Investigation, Ruel B. Ramirez, MSCE M. ASEP, Structural Engineering

Specialist, declared that “based on the results of material testing, the strength of the coral stone was

affected by fire and was reduced by almost twenty percent. However, with the 20 percent reduction in

strength, the overall structure is still safe for occupancy considering the earthquake and wind design
based on the requirement of the Building Code”

Ruel B. Ramirez designed the rafter of the church for free. With help from Robert Torres, the fabrication
of trusses and the roofing of the church were accomplished through the contribution of the
parishioners in Alay-Bobong and Bingo Para sa Bobong ng Simbahan.

Architect Reynaldo A. Inovero, a Conservation Architect and Former Chief of the Historic Preservation
Division of the National Historic Commission of the Philippines, trained our local craftsmen on the
treatment of the coral stone. Although the restoration of the four centuries church walls was the most
difficult and painstaking task in the reconstruction of the church, it was made possible through the
dedication of our workers and the continued financial support of the parishioners.
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STAINED GLASS WINDOWS AND THE CENTURIES-OLD CEILING OF WINDOWS

Designed by Fr. Alex Bautista and Arch. Jeremy Balagat, the stained glass windows are manufactured

by KRAUT Enterprises INC, a company fabricating stained glass since 1902. With red as a dominant

color to signify the martyrdom of St. Peter, the stained glasses are adorned by purely geometric

figures. Through the expertise of Architect Reynaldo A. Inovero, a Conservation Architect and Former

Chief of the Historic Preservation Division of the National Historical Commission of the Philippines,

the centuries-old wood recovered during the clearing of the church was re-installed at the ceiling of
the windows.







WALL PAINTINGS
To highlight the significance of the life and mission of St. Peter, the wall paintings feature the theme
for each day of the new novena to St. Peter the Apostle. Thus, the wall paintings depict the
development of the faith of St. Peter especially as a disciple and apostle.
Multi-awarded Hermes Alegre, an accomplished figurative painter who used to work along the
modernist tradition, painted ten canvasses to narrate the story of Peter’s life and mission. The
paintings were commissioned by Ofelia Ferrer Herrera and Children.




COMMUNION RAIL

Although the communion rail has no liturgical function, it was restored due to emotional attachment

of the old parishioners. It used to serve as a place where the communicants would kneel down in order

to receive the Eucharistic Lord with outmost reverence and devotion. Old pictures had helped in

restoring the exact design of the communion rail. This time, however, it will no longer be used
liturgically.
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RETABLO

The construction of the retablo was reinterpreted through the help of archival documentation. Pictures
given by the parishoners had helped in visualizing the old retablo. Fr. Julito Heraldo’s extensive
knowledge of the church history led to the discovery of the church inventory dated 1913 which
provided additional details of the retablo particularly the images of the saints enshrined in it.
Designed by Fr. Alex Bautista, the retablo was constructed through the generous donation of Captatin
Gaudencio Morales. He also financed the installation of the Italian granite in the sanctuary area.
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